ANNUAL REPORT
(FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25)

SANDHAR TECHNOLOGIES BARCELONAS.L




S. CHUTANI & Co.

INDIA Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Sandhar Technologies Barcelona S.L

Report on the Audit of the Special Purpose Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Special Purpose Consolidated Financial Statement of Sandhar Technologies
Barcelona S.L (the “Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31% March 2025, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the period for the year then ended and notes to consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(herein referred to as ‘Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements’). The Special Purpose Financial
information is prepared solely for the internal management to support preparation of consolidated
financial results of Sandhar Technologies Limited (STL) in accordance with the requirements of
Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015, as
amended from time to time.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Special Purpose Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31% March 2025, loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose Financial Information” section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Consolidated Ind AS Financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient gnd appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Information other than Special Purpose Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but does not
include the Special Purpose Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Special Purpose Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Special Purpose Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the Special Purpose Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to preparation of Special Purpose Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and
fair view of the Consolidated financial position and other comprehensive income of the company and
other financial information in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down
in the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules
issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectivelyfor ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Special Purpose Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, management and Board of
Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of the company are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Special Purpose consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Special Purpose Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Special Purpose consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Special Purpose Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements, whetherdue to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain auditevidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Special Purpose Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Special Purpose Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Special Purpose Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

The Special Purpose consolidated financial statements of the Group, for Ind AS, have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain and the auditor SW AUDIT
CONTROL. S.L.P has issued unqualified audit report dated 21% May 2025. The consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been adjusted for adjustments pursuant to conversion of the books of
account maintained under Local Laws to Indian Accounting Standards and conversion from local
currency i.e. EURO to Indian Rupees as explained under Note 2 under Basis of Preparation. We have
relied on the English translation of the transactions from local language. In our opinion, the company
has maintained proper books of account in so far as appears from our examination of those books.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

For M/s S Chutani & Company

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 036031N

Swati Chutani
Membership no. 542731

Place: New Delhi
Dated: May 21, 2025

UDIN: 25 S22\ SOTNUNT QM)
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Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL Consolidated
Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

Particulars

Assets

Neon-current assets

Property, plant and equlpment
Right-of-use assets

Capital work-In-progress
Intangible assets

Consolidated Goodwill
Financlal assets

-Deferred tax assets (net)

- Other finandal assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current asssts

Current assets

Inventories

Flnandal assets

-Lloans

- Trade receivables

- Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets

Total current assets

Total asssts
« Eaulty end liabllitles

Equity

' Equity share capltal
Other equity
- Retalned eamings

- Other reserves
Total equlty

Non-current llabllities
Financlal liabillties

- Borrowings

- Other financial liabilitles

- Lease Liabillty
Government grant
Deferred tax liabillties {net)

Total non current liablities

Current llabilities
i Financial llabllittes
- Borrowlngs
- Trade payables
- Other flnanclal llabliitles
= Lease Liability
Other current liabilities

: Total eurrent lisbilities

Total equity and fiabllitias -
S y of m: ¥ inting policies

Notes

3A

~ Ve

13
13
13A

10
11
13
13
12

25

A
~5 at

31 March 2024

The. accomnpanying notes are an Integral part of the consalidated financial statements.

As per our revlew report of even date

Far M/s S Chutanl & Company
Chartered Accauntants
FAN: 036031N

Swati Chutani
M. No: 542731

Date: 2\3"’ M'j ):6.)/5

Place: New Delhl

For and on behalf of

36,740.82
4,77747
1,146.75

556,55
03585

252,01 |
254.63 |

042
43,2060
15,082.67
46370
5,655.26

23253
1,960.16

23,394.32 |

07,123.92 |

2,143 37

93756
1,564.12

4,645.05

8,928.04

50157
4,647.68
4,427.09

18,504.38

29,108 14
12,404.74
84743
594.26
1,019.92

43,974.49

67,123.92 .

All amount in INR lacs

3) March 2024

36,224 10
5,190.10
1,337.15

173,85
0.95

262.29
43,188.44

13,055.36

82344
5,493.64
269,36
2,388,939

22,030.79

65,219.23 |

I

2,14337

2,088.64
1,369.07

560108

11,143.91

725.52
5,127.47
4,186 22 ;
458.59

2164271

22,744,58
11,929,39

1,131.71,

564,14 |
1,605.62

37,97544

65,219.23

Sandhar Technologles Barcetona, SL

W Manel Gonzalez

t ar
Dire IWJ\‘A

luab Vilar
|Gekeral Manager)

{Chief Financlal Officer)



Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in INR lacs

Parficulars | e For the year ended For the year ended
068 31 March 2075 31 March 2024

I REVENUE
Revenue From Operations 14
Other income 15

Total Income (1)

i EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed 16A

(Increase)/ decrease in inventaries of finished goods, work-in
progress, scrap and components
Employee Benefits Expense 17

16B

Finance Costs 20
Depreciation and amortisation expense 18
Other Expenses 19
Total expenses {I1)

]} Loss before exceptional itema and tax (I-11)
Exceptional item
1\ Loss befare tax

A Tax expense:
(1) Current tax
(2) Deferred tax (credit)/ charge

\Y| Loss for the perlod/year (IV-V)

vii Other Comprehensjve income
a. Items that will be reclassified to profit or lass
(i) Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of
foreign operations
-Income tax relating to above
Total Other Comprehensive Income
Vil Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the period/year (VI+VII)

1X Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic 21
(2) Diluted 21
Summary of material accounting policies 25
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our review report of even date

Chartered Accountants

FRMN: ossj;};
Swati CRutani

M. No:\542731

e DASE Wo 2028

Place: New Delht

45,255.25
22834
45,483.59

14,839.52 |
(31465).

10,659.54
2,873.85 |
3,537.69
15,996 23

47,592.18

(2,108.59)

(2,108.59)/
(240.04)
(717.47)

{1,151.08),

260.07

(65.02)
195.05

(956.03);

(35.44)
(35.44)

For and on behalf of
Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL

Judn Vilar
(General Manager)

48,793.33
207.48
49,000.81

13,623.69
(22868}

10,950.69
261171
337151

18,940.71

49,269.63

(268.82)
(268.82),
187.07
(115.32)

(340.57);

59.05

(14.76)
44.29

(296.28)

(10.48)
(10.48)

Manel Gonzalez
(Chief Financial Officer)



Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flaws for the year ended 31 March 2025

All amount in INR locs

For the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2025 31 Marcti 2024

A Cash Flow from Opersting Activities
1 Loss Before Tax {2,108 59} (268 B2)
2 Adjustments far:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3,537.69 3,371.51
{Profit}/Loss on sale of fixed assets 11,82 (3.31)
Interest expense 2,873.85 261171
3 Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes {1+2) 4,314.77 5,711.10
4 Change in Working Capltal:
(Excluding Cash & Bank Balances)
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 195.05 44 29
(Increase) in trade receivables {161.62) {100.32)
{Increase) in inventories (2,027.31) {1,158.65)
Decrease/(Increase) in long-term loans and advances 7.66 (18.78)
Decrease in short-term loans and advances and other current assets 788,57 2,306.51
Increase/{Decrease) in trade payables 47535 {1,463.68)
Increase in other long term liabilities 240,88 2,029.03
({Decrease) in other current liabilities (650.89) (2,116,44)
Change In Working Capital {1,132.31) (478.04)
S Cash Generated From Operations {3+4) 3,182.46 5,233.06
6 Less : Taxes {refund)/pald (245.91) 177.04
7 Net Cash Flows generated from Operating Actlvities (5-6) 3,42R.37 5,056.02
-] Cash Flows from investing Activities:
Purchase of fixed assets {4,325.39) (3,917.15)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 36.02 1836
Net Cash {used in} Investing Activities: {4,289.37) {3,898.79]
Cc Net Cash Flows from Finsncing Activities:
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 55751 1,039.07
Repayment of long-term borrawings {3.905.67) {3,142.38}
Proceeds from short-term borrowings {net) 7,495.85 4,076.36
Repayment of lease liabilities {449 68) (495.89)
Interest paid on |ease liabilities {159 85) {167.80)
Finance costs paid (2,713.99) (2,44391)
Net Cash (used in) Financing Activitles: 82417 (1,134.55)
D Net Change in Cash & cash equlvalents (A+B+C) -36.83 2268
E-1 Cash & cash equivalents as at end of the year 23253 269 36
E-2 Cash & cash equivalents as at the beginning of year 269.36 246 68
Notes:

1. The standalone cash flow statement has bieen prepared in accordance with “Indirect Method" as set out on Indian Accounting Standard -7 on “Statement on Cash Flows

2 Refer note 2 S for material accaunting policies.

3. Amendment to Ind AS 7: Effective 1 April 2017, the Company adopted the amendment ta Ind AS 7, which require the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of
these standalone financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and nan-cash
changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconailiation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liablities arising from financing activities, to meet the
disclosure requirement, The adoption of amendment did not have any material impact on the standalone financial statements,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our review report of even date

far and on behalf of
Sandhar Technologles Barcelona, SL

Manel Gonzalez
{Cirera: {Chief Financial Officer)

Jugn Vilar
Place: New Delhi (G¥neral Manager)
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Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL. Consolidated
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

1.

2.1

Group Activity

Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, S.L., (the dominant company hereinafter STB) was incorporated
under the denomination Meplerson, SL the 18th May 2007 and remained inactive until it was purchased
on the 9th July 2007 by nominee of Sandhar Technologies Limited (hereinafter STL). On 17th July
2007, the board approved the change of the name to the current one.

On the same day of purchase, 9™ July 2007, STB purchased the 100% of the stakes of Breniar Project,
SL, (hereinafter Breniar) incorporated the 25" April 2007 and remained inactive until it was purchased.

On the 1% August 2007 Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, S.L., in the name of STL, in public writing
fulfilled the order of the courts and purchased the assets of TECFISA, and Breniar purchased the assets
of VETEC, subrogating each one its lease and labour contracts.

On the 6th August 2012 Sandhar Technologies Barcelona SL has acquired Arding Investments sp. zoo.
(100 shares, 100% of the company equity), which later became Sandhar Technologies Poland sp. zoo.,
(hereinafter STP) taking over the employees of a former subcontractor of STB.

On December 2014 STB acquired the shares of Sandhar Technologies de México S de RL de CV
(hereinafter STM), by increasing the equity of the company.

On 4th March 2021 Sandhar Technologies Ro, SRL (hereinafter STR) was incorporated, being STB its
sole shareholder.

Breniar Project was liquidated the 22nd March 2021.

The main activity of the group, formed by STB, the head of the group and dominant company, STP,
STM and STR, is the manufacture of aluminium high pressure die cast parts for the automotive sector.

Consolidation is done with the global integration method.
None of the companies of the group is listed.
Principles of Conversion of the Financial Statement from IGAAP to Indian GAAP

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2016 based on the material
accounting policies of the Parent Company and after translating the reporting currency of STB group
i.e. Euro to Indian Rupees, following the principles for translation of the financial statements of Non-
Integral Foreign operations as laid down in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 21 viz. The
effects of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company has prepared its consolidated financial
statements on the reporting package of the Parent Company.




Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL Consolidated
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

S. | Name of the Subsidiary | Nature of | Ownership in % either directly | Country  of
No. | Company ' relation or through subsidiaries Incorporation
As at As at
31 March 31 March 2024
2025
1. Sandhar Technologies Barcelona | Parent 100 100 Spain
S.L.(STB) Company
A Breniar Project, SL (BP) Subsidiary 100 100 Spain
B Sandhar Technologies Poland sp. | Subsidiary 100 100 Poland
Zoo (STP)
C Sandhar Technologies de | Subsidiary 100 100 Mexico
Mexico S de RL de CV (STM)
D Sandhar Technologies Ro SRL Subsidiary 100 100 Romania
(w.e.f. 4 March 2021)
Functional currency of the Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, S.L, i.e. Euro has been translated into the
reporting currency of the STL i.e. Indian Rupees as under
+» All assets and liabilities are converted at the rates prevailing at the end of the year.
% Items in Statement of Profit & Loss are converted at the period average rate.
¢ Share capital has been converted on the rate prevailing at the date of investment.
¢ Reserves & Surplus is the balance derived from statement of Profit & Loss for each year, hence has
been converted at average exchange rate for the period.
¢ The resulting exchange difference is accumulated in foreign currency translation reserve until the
disposal of net investment.
¢ Functional currency i.e. Euro has been converted into reporting currency i.e. INR as under:-
- Closing rate at 92.4838
- Opening rate at 89.9503
- Average period rate during the year at 90.7619
2.2 Consolidated financial Statements of the STB Group has been audited by SW Audit Control and
submitted their report dated 21st May 2025. Consolidation of the accounts of STB (Group) has been
done under the global integration method. e.g.
% Elimination of Investment and arriving of goodwill on consolidation, Capital Reserve on
Consolidation.
% Elimination of income from Intercompany transactions.
% Elimination of intercompany dividends.
% Eliminations of credit/debit balances arising from operations or financial transactions between
group companies.
% Eliminations of expenses and revenue arising from intercompany transactions.
23 In view of different set of environments in which the Subsidiaries operate, the accounting policies

followed for estimated useful life of the components of the fixed assets and its determination of
depreciation on fixed assets is different from the accounting policies of the Company. This variation is
in the nature of estimation of the useful life. However, depreciation on fixed assets has been calculated
under Straight Line Method which is in accordance with the accounting policy of the Parent Company.
(Amount involved is Rs. 34.35 Crore)

Further, inventory of Spare Parts has been valued at Cost whereas spare parts are valued at lower of
Cost or NRV as per the accounting policy of the Parent Company. In the opinion of the Management,
impact of this different accounting is negligible in view of the in-house consumption of the spare parts.
(Amount involved is Rs 31.31 Crore).




Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL. Consolidated
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

2.4

24.1

Material Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation
(1) Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’),
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules as amended from time to
time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(i) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) in lakhs, except when
otherwise indicated.

(iii) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following items which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and financial liability Fair value

Investment in preference shares (unquoted) Fair value

Net defined benefit plan (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of
defined benefit obligation.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements are in
accordance with the accounting policies of the Parent Company i.e. Sandhar Technologies Ltd. The
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements are consistent
with those of the previous year.

(iv) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Company's consolidated financial statements requires management to make
Jjudgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. These include
recognition and measurement of financial instruments, estimates of useful lives and residual value of
Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets, valuation of inventories, measurement of
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units, measurement of employee benefits, actuarial
assumptions, provisions etc.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The Company
continually evaluates these estimates and assumptions based on the most recently available information.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

(v) Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measur

pent of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. &




Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL. Consolidated
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

2.5 Summary of Material Accounting Policies
a. Property, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition and Measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price, non-gefl
purchase taxes, duties or levies, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, 3




Sandhar Technologies Barcelona, SL. Consolidated
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated cost of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which it is located. The present value of
the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials
and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its
intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which
it is located.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the
asset is derecognized.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

The Company does not adjust exchange differences arising on translation/settlement of long-term
foreign currency monetary items pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset to the cost of the
asset but charges the same to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which such gain/loss
arises.

A property, plant and equipment is eliminated from the consolidated financial statements on disposal or
when no further benefit is expected from its use and disposal. Assets retired from active use and held
for disposal are generally stated at the lower of their net book value and net realizable value. Any gain
or losses arising disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, property, plant and equipment are no longer depreciated.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized
in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(i) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.
Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis to allocate
their cost, net of their estimated residual values, over the estimated useful lives and is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The identified components are depreciated over
their useful life, the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset. Freehold
land is not depreciated.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financia end and

adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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Depreciation on fixed assets is provided at the rates of the Spanish Tax Tables.

Asset Current Year
STB STM STP STR
Building N/A N/A N/A 2.38%.
Foundry Machinery 5.56% 5% N/A 5.88%
Machining Machinery 7.14% 7.14% N/A N/A
Other Machinery 10% - - =
Installations 5% 5% 10% 5.88%
Furniture & Fixtures 5% 5% 10% 11.11%
Vehicles - 10% 14% N/A
Computers 25% 25% 25% 33.33%
Dies, Tools, and 16.67% 20% 10% N/A
Instruments
b. Activities with environment incidence

The costs of acquisition of equipment, systems or installations for the elimination, reduction or control
of the possible environment impacts of the business are capitalized as environment fixed assets. The rest
of expenses are accounted as expenses of the period.

c. Intangible assets
(i) Recognition and Measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use and disposal. Losses arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of an
intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i))Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

(iii) Amortization

Intangible assets consist of software purchased by the Company which is amortised on a pro-rata to the
period of use over 4 years on a straight-line basis in all companies.

Research & Development know-how produced by the company which is amortised on a pro-rata to the

period of use over 5 years on a straight-line basis.

- Goodwill
Goodwill is not amortized but will be tested for impairment annually.
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Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Amortization method, useful lives and residual lives are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted, if appropriate.

d. Leases

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 w.e.f. 01 April 2019 using the modified retrospective approach
and therefore the comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under Ind
AS 17.

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 — Ind AS 116

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

As a lessee —

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company, at
the inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange for
a consideration. This policy has been applied to contracts existing and entered on or after 1 April 2019.

The Company elected to use the following practical expedients on initial application:

- Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date.

- Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12
months of lease term on the date of initial application.

- Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial
application.

- Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases.
Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind
AS 17.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the
shorter of lease term or useful llfe of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful llves of right- of—use assets
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tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The Company determines its incremental borrowing
rate by obtaining interest rates from various external financing sources and makes certain adjustments
to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
— fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

— the exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the company is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a
change in the company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

Short-term leases- The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short-term leases. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Policy applicable before 1 April 2019 — Ind AS 17
(i) Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for other
elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If it is concluded for a finance lease that it is
impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognized at an
amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. The liability is reduced as payments are made
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€.

(ii) Assets held under lease

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance
lease.

Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized in finance costs in
the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs.
Contingent rentals are recognized as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated
over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. Subsequent to the initial
recognition, the assets are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies applicable to
similar owned assets. Assets held under leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all the
risk and rewards of ownership (i.e. operating lease) are not recognized in the Company’s Balance
Sheet.

(iii) Lease payments

Operating lease payments are not straight lined in cases where the escalation is expected to increase in
line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost.

Payments made under finance lease are allocated between the outstanding liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to the statement of profit and loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs),
amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they are
incurred.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest Group of assets that ge es cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. :
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An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an individual asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU)
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its
remaining useful life.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated.
These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a
long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To
estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the
Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which
the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment
of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds ‘its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus
taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognized in OCI up to the amount of any
previous revaluation surplus.

In regard to assets for which impairment loss has been recognized in prior period, the Company
reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer
exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization,
if no impairment loss had been recognized.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists,
the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment
loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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i

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually at the CGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Government grant

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in
equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair
value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of
the benefit of the underlying asset i.e. by equal annual instalments.

Inventories

Work in progress, Raw materials, sub-assemblies and components including goods in transit are carried
at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on ‘first in first out’ basis.

Stores and spare parts are valued at cost.
Finished goods are carried at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:

e Raw materials and components: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of raw material, components, stores
and spares is determined on first in, first out basis.

e Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity. Cost is determined
on first in, first out basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The net realizable value of
work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of related finished products.

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item-by-item basis

Moulds done for the clients

The expenses for moulds to be invoiced to the clients are capitalized until they are finally sold. Sales
of moulds are recognised when they are homologated by the client.

Foreign Currencies

Functional and presentational currency
Company’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR). Company’s
functional currency is Euro (EUR).

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at functional
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition or an average rate if
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approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date
(Refer Note 2.1). Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or the statement of
profit and loss are also recognized in OCI or the statement of profit and loss, respectively).

j- Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sales of parts are recognised on shipment to customers and includes net amount excluding value
added tax.

In consignment stocks at the client’s warehouse, sales are recognised upon self-billing/consumption
advice from the client.
Sales of moulds are recognised when they are homologated by the client.

Dividends
Revenue is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established by the

reporting date.

Operating cycle
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. Where the normal operating cycle cannot be identified, it is assumed to have

a duration of twelve months.

k. Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognized directly in equity
or in other comprehensive income. '

Current tax .
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current
tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the
uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes.
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Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognized on carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or
there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets — unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at
each reporting date and are recognized/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to
the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.
Provisions for taxation have been made in accordance with Dutch corporate income tax law.

L Segment reporting

Basis for segmentation
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An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with
any of the Company’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. The
Company is primarily engaged in the manufacture of aluminium high pressure die cast parts for the
automotive sector. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s
Chief to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.
Further export turnover of the Company is less than 10% of the total turnover; therefore, disclosure
relating to geographical segment is also not applicable.

m. Earnings per share

Basic earnings / (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to the shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the
end of the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
is adjusted for events of bonus issue, if any, that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares except where the results will be anti-
dilutive.

n. Provisions (Other than employee benefits)
General provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed the expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost. Expected future operating losses are not
provided for.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Other provision
Accidental environmental liabilities are covered by the liability insurance.
Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be requlred to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a
cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. .
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0. Employee benefits

According the sector social agreement (Convenio Side rometalirgico de la provinciade Barcelona) the
company pays 2 additional payrolls in June and December. The 2 additional payments, as well as the
holidays payroll are provisioned every month on accrual basis.

p- Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals and accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

q. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash on hand and cheques on
hand, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank, cash
on hand and cheques on hand as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

r. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities are initially recognized when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit and loss (‘FVTPL’), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at:

- Amortized cost;

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVOCI’) — debt instrument;

- FVOCI - equity investment; or

-FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

-the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to coll
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flows; and
-the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies
to trade and other receivables.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

-the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

-the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income
(OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is re-classified from the equity to Statement of Profit and
Loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as
FVOCI — equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice.
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of
the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial asset
business model) and how those risks are managed;

5
*
-
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- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purpose of this assessment ‘Principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Company considers:

- contingents events that would change the amounts or timings of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

-.terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non - recourse features)

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of
the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, as feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also
include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and

FVTPL losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the

amortized cost effective interest method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and

losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition
is recognized in profit or loss.

Debt investment at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
FVOCI under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognized in OCIL. On derecognition, gains and losses
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investment at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
FVOCI recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are not reclassified to profit
or loss.
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Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognized in profit or loss.

iii. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assets are not derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is
recognized in profit or loss.

iv. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on:
- Financial assets measured at amortized cost; and
- Financial assets measured at FVOCI — debt instruments.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost and
debt instruments at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit — impaired includes the following observable data:

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
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not increased significantly, 12 month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit
risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with Company’s procedures for the recovery of amount
due.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for the
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure:
a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., deposits and
advances
b. Trade receivables that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115
c. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition.
If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period,
credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-
month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
defaulf events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the
expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to
use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that ar
contractual terms

ral_to the
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ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is
described below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and contractual revenue receivables: ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

e Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the
balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is
designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e.,
financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

S. Recent accounting pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23,
2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022,
applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below.

Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds
of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but
deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant,
and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2022.

Ind AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets — The amendment specifies that
the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that
relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would
be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an
example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022.
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Note 3A: Capital Work in Progress

Particul As at As at 31 March
AfERIarS 31 March 2025 2024
Capital work in progress 1,146.75 1,337.15 |
1,146.75 1,337.15
Breakup of Capital Work in Progress is as follows:
Plant and equipment 1,146.75 1,337.15
1,146.75 1,337.15
Capital Work In Progress Aging Schedule
As at 31 March 2025
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Particulars More than 3
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
years
Projects in progress 291.96 854.79 - 1,146.75
Total 291.96 - 854.79 - 1,146.75
As at 31 March, 2024
Amount in CWIP for a period of
i More than 3
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years years Total
Projects in progress 272.19 1,064.96 - - 1,337.15
Total 272.19 1,064.96 - - 1,337.15

(This space has beén left blank intentionally}
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4, Intangible assets

Computer Technical
Particulars P Total
software Know How

Gross block

At 1 April 2023 261.08 386.45 647.53
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 1.67 2.48 415
Additions 22.55 - 22.55
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 0.04 - 0.04
Disposals - - .
Add/Less: Foreign translation Adjustment 0.19 - 0.19
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments = - -
As at 31 March 2024 285.53 388.93 674.46
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 8.04 10.95 19.00
Additions 13.28 459,51 472.79
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 0.25 8.72 8.97
Disposals - - -
Add/Less: Foreign translation Adjustment 0.05 - 0.05
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments \ : = -
As at 31 March 2025 307.15 868.10 1,175.25
Amortization

At 1 April 2023 203.59 186.71 390.30
Add/tess: FCTR Adjustments 1.31 1.20 2.50
Charge for the year 29.84 77.65 107.49
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 0.05 0.13 0.18
Disposals - - -
Add/Less: Foreign translation Adjustment 0.13 - 0.13
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments - < -
As at 31 March 2024 234.92 265.69 500.61
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 6.62 7.48 14.10
Charge for the year 23.54 78.49 102.03
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments 0.45 1.49 1.94
Disposals - - -
Add/Less: Foreign translation Adjustment 0.03 - 0.03
Add/Less: FCTR Adjustments . - - -
As at 31 March 2025 265.55 353.15 618.70
Net block

As at 31 March 2025 41.60 514.95 556.55

As at 31 March 2024 50.61 123.24 173.85
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5. Financial assets

Particulars

As at
31 March 2025

As at 21 March 2024

A Loans
Other advances 463.70 82344
Doubtful . .
463.70 823.44
Less: Provision for doubtful advance
Total loans 463.70 823.44
Break up of total loans
(a} Secured, considered good; = 3
(b} Unsecured, considered good; and 463.70 823.44
(c} Doubtful. o
463.70 823.44
Provision for doubtful receivables
463 70 82344
Current 463.70 823.44
Non-current )
B. Trade receivables
Trade receivables 5,655.26 5,493.64
Total trade receivables 5,655 26 5,493 64
Break-up for trade receivables more than 6 months overdue:
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due
for payment:
Secured, considered good -
Unsecured, considered good 5,655.26 5,493.64
Doubtful
5,655.26 5,493.64
Total trade receivables 5,655.26 5,493.64
Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31 2025
Out ing for the periods from due date of payment
Particulars Total
Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
i} Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 5,468 92 167.70 14.22 3.08 134 5,655.26
ii} Undisputed Trade receivables- which have significant increase in credit risk
Iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good
v) Disputed Trade receivables- which have significant increase in credit risk
vi) Disputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired
Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2024
Particulars Cutstanding for the following periods from due date of —l
Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years hore than 3 years
i) Undisputed Trade receivables- considered good 5,399.38 9197 2.29 5,493.64
i} Undisputed Trade receivables- which have significant increase in credit risk
iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired -
iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good
v) Disputed Trade receivables- which have significant increase in credit risk
vi) Disputed Trade Receivables- credit impaired
) Cash and cash equivalent
Balances with banks:
—On current accounts 23084 267.98
Cash on hand 1.69 138
Total Cash and cash equivalent 23253 269.36
D. Other financlal assets
Security Deposits - Non Current 254.63 262.29
Total other financial assets 254.63 262.29
Current
Non-current 254.63 262.29
Total financial assets (A+B+C+D) 6,606.13 6,848.74
Current 6,351.50 6,586.45
Non-cuirent 254.63 262.29
6. Inventories
Raw materials 820.04 891.70
Work in progress 3,608 84 2,682.36
Finished goods 2,849.74 3,293.37
Stores and spares 7.854.86 6,237 35
15,133.48 13,104.78
Provision for inventory absolescence {50 81}) (49.42)
Total inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value 15,082 67 13,055 36
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7. Other assets

A Other advances

tUnsecured, considered good
Total advances
Less:Provision for doubtful capital advances

B Prepaid expenses
Prepaid expenses

C Balance with statutory / government authorities
Unsecured, considered good

Less:Provision for other doubtful advances

D. Other assets
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation)

Total other assets {A+B+C+D)

Current
Non-current

8. Share Capital

A Authorised share capital (Equity)

At 1 April 2023

32,48,403 Equity shares of EUR 1 each
Increase/(decrease) during the year
As at 31 March 2024
Increase/{decrease) during the year
As at 31 March 2025

8. Issued, subscribed and fully paid equity capital

At 1 April 2023
Changes during the year
At 31 March 2024
Changes during the year
As at 31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2025

Q12
0.42

042

295.27
295.27

1,069.07
1,069.07

1,069.07

595.82
595 82
1,960 58

1,960.16
0.42

3248
3248

3248

HNo.in lacs

3248
3248

3248

21692
216 92

157254
1,572.54

1,572.54

599.53
599.53
2,388 99

2,388 99

EUR 3248403
EUR 3248403

EUR 3248403

2,143.37
2,143 37

2,143.37

Aggregate number of bonus of shares issued, share issued for consideration other than cash & share bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reparting

date

Asat 31 March 2025
Amounl

31 March 2024

Amauni

Equity shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares by capitalization of reserves 6.29 6.29

Petails of shares held by promoters as at 31 March 2025

No. of shares at No. of shares at

% of % change duri hi
Promoter Name the beginning of Change during the year  the end of the e % 8 ng the
Total Shares year
the year year

Sandhar Technologies Limited 32,48,403.00 32,48,403.00 100.00% 0.00%
Equity shares of EUR 1 each fully paid
Total 32,48,403.00 32,48,403.00 100.00% 0.00%
Details of shares held by promoters as at 31 March 2024

No. of sh t No. of sh. t

©- 0 s ar'es N . ey % of % change during the
Promoter Name the beginning of Change during the year the end of the
Total Shares year
the year year
Sandhar Technologies Limited 32,48,403.00 32,48,403.00 100.00% 0.00%
Equity shares of EUR 1 each fully paid
Total 32,48,403.00 32,48,403.00 100.00% 0.00%
9. Other equity

Othier ety

Relained earings

Reserves and Surplus

Secwity Premam

Foreipn Cutrency

translation Reserve

Total other

iy

As at 31 March 2024
As at 31 March 2025

2,088 64
93756

(This space is intentionally left blank}

1,038.43

3,457.71
2,501.68
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10. Borrowings

A. Non-current borrowings

EUR loan from Bankinter {Unsecured) 469.49 643.81
EUR Loan multiple bankers ICO COVID19 (Unsecured) 24.01 331.69
EUR Credit multiple bankers ICO COVID19 (Unsecured) 956.17 993.34
USD Loan from Banamex {Secured) 233.83 461.51
EUR Loan from ICF (Unsecured) 1,232.59 1,758.52
EUR loan in B. Transilvania (STR} {Unsecured) 4,965.45 5,283.58
EUR Loan from ICICI Bank {Secured} 79.46 437.95
EUR loan from BBVA {Secured) 322,03 443.25
Lease financing loans from financial institutions {Secured) 645.01 790.26
Total non-current borrowings 8.928.04 11,143.91
Secured 1,280,34 2,132.98
Unsecured 7,647.70 9,010.93
B. Current borrowings
a) Current maturity of foreign currency loan
EUR Loan from Santander (Corporate guarantee from STL){Unsecured) . 152,17
EUR loan from Bankinter {Unsecured) 191.52 173.18
EUR Loan multiple bankers ICO COVID19 (Unsecured) 316.83 634.47
USD Loan from Banamex (Secured} 133.62 546.02
EUR Loan from ICF {Unsecured) 57441 988.41
EUR Loan from ICIC| Bank {Secured) 370.82 360.66
EUR loan in B. Transilvania (STR} (Unsecured) 471,60 344.01
EUR loan from BBVA (Secured) 133.71 127.60
Lease financing loans from financial institutions (Secured) 299,15 297.43
Total Current maturity of foreign currency loan 2,491.66 3,623.94
Secured 937.30 1,331.71
Unsecured 1,554.36 2,292.23
b) Cash credit from banks {Unsecured)*
Cash credit/WCDL/Buyer's line of credit from banks (secured by CL, CGT or SBLC from 26,616.48 17,456.55
STL or by invoices financed)
c) Loan from related parties** 1,664.08
Total current borrowings 29,108.14 22,744.58

As al
31 March 2

lerms of borrowinps:

(i)EUR loan from Santander carries interest @ 1.95% p.a. repayable in 24 monthly
instalments of Eur 6,250 {plus interest) from May 2020 to April 2022. New loan from
Santander carrying interest @ 2.25% repayable in 24 monthly instalments of Eur
21,325.10 (interest included) from Dec, 2022 to Nov. 2024,

{ii) 3 EUR loan from ICF; first for 2,500 Keur, carrying interest 5.89% p.a. (12 mnth
Euribor+2,5%) repayable in 48 monthly instalments of Eur 76,622 from November
2022 to August 2025, second of 920 Keur, payable in 71 instalments of Eur 12,777.77
{plus interest, 5.174%) and 1 last instalment of Eur. 12,778.33 (plus interest) from
Jan. 2024 to Dec. 2029, with Moratory period from Dec. 2021 to Dec. 2023 third for
1000 KEUR with Moratory period from March to August 2023 repayable in 114
installments of 11,267.89 EUR, including interest of 5.23% (12 mnth Euribor+2.7%)

(iii) Lease financing loans from financial institutions (Some of which with Comfort
letter from Parent company), carries interest @ 1.75% to 5.97%, monthly instalment
ranging from Eur 168 to EUR 16,911 (Secured).

{iv) EUR loan multiple bankers ICO COVID19 carry interest @ 1.5% to 3.55% {average
2%), repayable from 3 to 5 years in monthly instalment ranging from Eur 3,222 to
EUR 38,000.

{v) USD 2 MIn Loan from Banamex in STM (SBLC guarantee from STL) carries interest
of USD SOFR+1.4% payable in 16 quarterly installments of USD 125,000 from July
2021 to January 2025 and USD 0.625 Min Loan from Banamex in STM (Corporate
guarantee from STL) carries interest of USD SOFR +1.4% payable in 16 quarterly
installments of USD 39,063 from February 2024 to November 2028.

{vi) EUR loan from ICICI Bank (Corporate guarantee from Parent company), carries
interest of 3.25% repayable from in 17 quarterly installments of EUR 100,240 (plus
interest) from March 2022 to March 2026 and a last installment of EUR 85,920 {plus
interest) in June 2026.

{vii)EUR 1 Min loan from BBVA (Corporate guarantee from Parent company}, carries
interest of 1.90% repayable in 84 months installments o EUR 12,723.38 {including
interest) from August 2021 to July 2028,

{viii) 700 KEUR loan from Bankinter {Unsecured) carries interest @ 5.27% (12 month
Euribor +2.82) repayable in 60 monthly instalments of Eur 13,480.22 {including
interest) from Apr. 2023 to Mar, 2028, It has 1 year moratory period from Apr. 2022
to Mar, 2023. And 350 KEUR loan from Bankinter {Unsecured) carries interest @
4.85% (12 months Euribor+2.23%) repayable in 60 monthly instalments of Eur
6629.98 (including interest) from Dec. 2023 to Nov 2028. It has 1 year moratory
period from Nov. 2022 to Dec 2023.

(ix) 2 EUR loan in B. Trensilvania (STR) carries interest @ 4.436% (3 month
Euribor+1.7%) for both loans; one for building of EUR 2,549,616.00 repayable in 10
years and another is for Machinery of EUR 3,966,708 81 but can be drawn until EUR
6,500,000 and repayable in 11 years.

1,807.00

944.16

1,297.01

367.45

450.28

455.74

661.01

5,437.05

152.17

2,746.93

1,087.69

1,959.50

1,007.53

798.61

570.85

816.98

5,627.59

*The above working capital line of credit from banks are secured by SBLC and Corporate Guarantee provided from Sandhar Technologies Limited

and Invoices financed carrying interest ranging from 1% to 4% .

**'The Company has taken an unsecured loan from Sandhar Technologies Limited {Holding Company) at an annual rate of interest of 9%, which has

been repaid during the year.
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11. Trade payables

As at

Particulars As at 31 March 2024

31 March 2025

Trade payable 12,404.74 11,929.39

Total trade payables 12,404.74 11,929.39

Trade Payables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2025

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

Less than 1 Year 1- 2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 Years | Total
(i) MSME < 3 - s
(i) Others 12,297.32 79.32 28.10 12,404.74
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - -
{iv) Disputed dues — Others - - - - -
Trade Payables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 Year 1-2 years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years | Total
(i) MSME - - - - -
(i) Others 11,913.56 13.27 0 2.16 11,929.39

(iii) Disputed dues — MSME

(iv) Disputed dues — Others . - -

12, Other liabilities

A5 ot 31 Warch 2025 | As at 3 March 2024

Other payables:

Current

Statutory dues 481,69 852.96
Other Payables 538.23 752.66
Total 1,019.92 1,605.62

13. Other financial liabilities

As at
icul As at 31 March 2024
Particulars 31'March 2025 s a arc

A. Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Payables for capital goods 878.18 1,321.22
Advance from customers 470.82 536.02
Lease Liabilities-current 594.26 564.14
Lease Liabilities-non current 4,647.68 5,127.47
Total financial liabilities at amortised cost 6,590.94 7,548.85
Current 1,441.69 1,695.85
Non-current 5,149.25 5,853.00

13A. Government grant

As at
Particular: As at 31 March 2024
31 March 2025

Balance at the beginning of the year

Received during the year

Recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Balance at the year end

Current
Non-current

4,186.22 2,157.19
457.89 2,216.45
(217.02) (187.42)
4,427.09 4,186.22
4,427.09 4,186.22
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14, Revenue From Operations

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
ear 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Sale of products 44,736.65 48,325.27
Other operating revenue
Scrap sale 518.60 468.06
Total 45,255.25 48,793.33
Total 45,255.25 48,793.33

15. Other income

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Other non-operating income

Profit on sale of fixed assets - 3.31
Government grant 218.25 188.67
Others 10.09 15.50

228.34 207.48

16. Cost of raw material and components consumed

A. 'Raw material and components consumed

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Inventory at the beginning of the year 891.70 601.70
Add: Purchases 14,744.80 13,908.29

15,636.50 14,509.99
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 820.04 891.70
Cost of raw material and components consumed 14,816.46 13,618.29
Adjustment on account of exchange difference 23.06 5.40
Cost of raw material and components consumed 14,839.52 13,623.69

B. (Increase)/ decrease in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress, scrap and components

. For the year ended

Closing inventories

For the year ended
31 March 2024

Finished goods 2,849.74 3,293.37

Work in progress 3,608.84 2,682.36

Adjustment on account of exchange difference {159.09) {(54.57)
Opening inventories

Finished goods 3,293.37 2,622.50

Work in progress 2,682.36 3,074.90

Adjustment on account of exchange difference 9.11 (4.92)
Net Increase/ (Decrease) 314.65 228.68
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17. Employee Benefits Expense

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Salaries, bonus and allowances
Social Security Expense
Staff welfare expenses

18. Depreciation and amortisation expense

8,216.20 8,355.59
1,773.54 1,903.65
669.80 691.45
10,659.54 10,950.69

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets (note 3)
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets {note 3)
Amortisation on intangible fixed assets {note 4)

19. Other expenses

Particulars

Consumption of stores and spares
Packing material
Job work charges
Rent
Vehicle Hire Charges
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Freight and forwarding charges
Power and fuel
Repairs and maintenance

- Buildings

- Plant & machinery

- Others
Legal & professional charges
Travelling and conveyance
Payment to auditor*
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss (net)
Miscellaneous expenses
Total other expenses

Payment to auditors:

Particulars

As auditor:
- Audit fee

20. Finance Costs

2,887.90 2,724.34
547.76 539.67
102.03 107.50
3,537.69 3,371.51
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

3,130.69 6,501.98
300.20 390.30
2,739.60 2,937.76
180.20 159.51
68.20 67.19
143.87 114.19
303.82 300.19
1,185.53 1,169.48
4,670.78 4,309.86
92.11 87.31
920.53 807.57
524.29 507.42
475.26 525.02
128.75 121.94
29.74 28.73

11.82 -
279.88 23.42
810.96 888.86
15,996.23 18,940.71

For the year ended For the year ended

29.74 28.73
29.74 28.73

DT For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Interest to banks on
- Term loan
- Others

Interest to others

Cash discounting charges

Bank charges

Commission on Corporate Gurantee
Interest on lease liabilities

Total finance costs

661.08 873.66
1,449.89 1,129.30
2,110.97 2,002.96

208.95 121.25

17.29 16.60

201.97 174.91

174.82 128.19

159.85 167.80
2,873.85 2,611.71
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21, Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic and Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

As at
Particul Asat3
culars S N i s at 31 March 2024

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent -1,151.08 -340.57
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing Earning per Share (Basic 32.48 32.48
& Diluted)

Earning Per Share (Basic and Diluted) (Rs) -35.44 -10.48
Face value per share EUR 1/- each EUR 1/- each

Reconciliation of welghted average number of equity shares for calculation of Basic and Diluted earnings per share:

Weighted
Particulars Number of equity shares SRR HIASE LS
number of shares

Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 per share:

As at 1 April 2024 32.48 32.48
Issued during the year 2024-25 - -
As at 31 March 2025 32.48 32.48

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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(Rupees in lacs, except share data, per share data and unless otherwise stated)

®

Other Notes

Segment Reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacture of aluminium high pressure die cast parts for the
automotive sector. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company’s
Chief to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess their performance.
The operating segment of the Company is identified to be “Automotive components™ as the Company’s
Chief reviews business performance at an overall Company level as one segment. Further export
turnover of the Company is less than 10% of the total turnover; therefore, disclosure relating to
geographical segment is also not applicable.

Accordingly, as the company operates in a single business and geographical segment, the reporting
requirements for primary and secondary disclosures under Indian Accounting Standard - 108 Operating
Segment have not been provided in the financial statements.

(ii) Related Party disclosures

Name of the major related parties and related party relationship:

1. Subsidiary companies including step-down subsidiaries:

Sandhar Ascast Private Limited (formerly known as Sandhar Tooling Private Limited)
Sandhar Technologies Barcelona S.L.

Sandhar Engineering Private Limited

Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited

Sandhar Auto Castings Private Limited

Sandhar Auto Electric Solutions Private Limited

me o TP

2. Joint ventures:

Sandhar Han Sung Technologies Private Limited
Jinyoung Sandhar Mechatronics Private Limited

Sandhar Amkin Industries Private Limited

Sandhar Whetron Electronics Private Limited

Kwangsung Sandhar Technologies Private Limited
Sandhar Han Shin Auto Technologies Limited
Winnercom Sandhar Technologies Private Limited
Kwangsung Sandhar Automotive Systems Private Limited

PR Mo a0 op

3. Enterprises over which Key managerial personnel/ relatives of key managerial personnel
are able to exercise control/ significant influence with whom transactions have undertaken
during the current year/ previous year:

a. Sandhar Estate Private Limited
b. Jubin Finance and Investment Limited

Haridwar Estates Private Limited

Swaran Enterprises (Mrs. Santosh Davar is a Partner)

Shorah Realty LLP

Rico Auto Industries Private Limited

Khaitan & Co LLP

Sandhar Foundation

Sandhar Info System LLP

SER e Ao

4. Key managerial personnel:
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a. Mr. Jayant Davar (Co-Chairman and Managing Director),
b. Mr. Yashpal Jain (Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary)
(appointed Company Secretary w.e.f. 9 February 2024)

Mr. Arvind Kapur (Non-Executive Independent Director)

Mr. Bharat Anand (Non-Executive Independent Director)

Ms. Archana Capoor (Non-Executive Independent Director)

Mr. Arjun Sharma (Non-Executive Independent Director)

Mr. Sandeep Dinodia (Non-Executive Independent Director)

Mr. Vimal Mahendru (Non-Executive Independent Director)

Mr. Vikarmpati Singhania (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Mr. D.N Davar (Non-Executive and Non - Independent Director)
Ms. Monica Davar (Non-Executive and Non - Independent Director)

AT E@ e o

m. Mr. Neel Jay Davar (Non-Executive and Non - Independent Director)

Ms. Komal Malik (Company Secretary) (resigned w.e.f. 15 January 2024)

5. Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel and relatives of Individual owning an interest in
the voting power of reporting enterprise that gives them control/ significant influence over
the Company with whom transactions have undertaken during the current year/ previous

year:
Mr. D. N. Davar

Mrs. Monica Davar
Mr. Neel Jay Davar
Mrs. Santosh Davar
Mrs. Poonam Juneja

I

a) Transactions that have taken place during the period 1st April 2024 to 31st March 2025 with related

parties by the Company.
Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries of Parent Total
parent company company

Reimbursement of financial charges

STL (Reimbursement of charges for providing SBLC in (NIL) 107.00 | 107.00

connection with Term Loan / Working Capital facilities being (NIL) (65.95) | (65.95)

availed by STB)

STL (Transfer of SBLC expenses to STM) (NIL) 53.56 53.56
(NIL) (11.23) | (11.23)

STL (Interest on loan to STB) (NIL) 214.01 214.01
(NIL) (121.33) | (121.33)

STL (Commission on Corporate Guarantee to STB) (NIL) 111.59 111.59
(NIL) (74.80) | (74.80)

STL (Commission on Corporate Guarantee to STM) (NIL) 65.12 65.12
(NIL) (53.69) | (53.69)

b) Outstanding balances as at 31st March 2025 with related parties
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Nature of Balance Parent company Total

Outstanding Payable

Loan from Sandhar Technologies Limited Nil Nil
(1664.08) (1664.08)

Trade Payables ( Sandhar Technologies Limited) 953.31 953.31
(384.59) (384.59)

Note: Figures in brackets represent amounts for the year ended 31 March 2024.

(iii) Commitments and Contingent Liabilities:
There are no claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts. There are no legal disputes, except for
some minor labour claims.

Year Ended 31 March 2025
FIn Amount of
Case Description Type & ID No. Status Dispute
- ) 141,167.99 Euros,
JGR Claim of damages 048540/2022 Prow;nonally filed, covered by liability
pending to schedule .
insurance
119,941 — euros,
MGB Claim of damages 70083/2022 Trial 2" June 2025 covered by liability
insurance
WFJZ Claim of damages 463/2023-B Initially rejected. Unquantified

due to disability Pending of appeal

Claim of damages . th
JIVM A e 620/2023-T | Trial 20" June 2025 |17,650

The estimated amount of the contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) is:

SUPPLIER Amt, In INR (Lacs)
AM.H. COMPONENTES, S.L. 5.99
AP3 PORTES AUTOMATIQUES SL 1.92
EVEC, S.A. 1.27
SERVEIS ELECTRICS IND.CONNECT, S.L. 3.32
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(iv) Remuneration to Directors

Nil

(v) Audit fees

31% March 2025 | 315 March 2024
Audit Fees 29.74 28.73
(vi) Production, Sales and Stock of Finished Goods
31 March 2025
Opening . .
Description (Nos.) Production Closing (No.) Sales Quantity (Nos.) Sales Value (INR)
(Nos.) 31/03/2025
31/03/2024

Seat belts
retractors 34.44 294.24 37.26 291.42 17,612.62
components )
Wiper
systems 2123 80.46 15.14 86.55 9,535.73
components )
Others
Components 10.73 82.80 9.90 83.62 14,020.27
Total 66.40 457.50 62.30 461.59 41,168.61
(vii) Leases

(i)  The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases' effective from 1 April 2019 and applied the standard to
its leases. In adopting Ind AS 116, the Company has applied the below practical expedients:
The Company has applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics.

(i) The Company has discounted lease payments using the applicable incremental borrowing rate as at
1 April 2019, which is 2.18% (STB) and 3.45% (STM) for measuring the lease liability.

(iii) Impact of Ind AS 116 on the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars For the ended For the ended
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Interest on Lease liabilities (refer note 20) 159.85 167.80
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (refer note 18) 547.76 539.67
Impact on the statement of profit and loss 707.61 707.47

(iv) Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the
year:
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Right of Use Assets For the ended For the ended

31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Opening Balance 5,190.10 5,683.04
Addition - -
FCTR Adjustment on addition 231.85 67.58
Depreciation Expense (547.76) (539.67)
FCTR Adjustment on depreciation (96.72) (20.85)
4,777.47 5,190.10

(v)  Setout below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

Lease Liability For the ended For the ended
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Opening Balance 5,691.61 6,187.50
Addition - -
Accretion of interest 159.85 167.80
Payments during the year (609.52) (663.69)
Closing Balance 5,241.94 5,691.61

(vi) Refer note viii for contractual maturities of lease liabilities.

(viii)

Financial Instruments- Fair Values

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying value Fair value
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2025 2024 2025 2024
Financial assets
. Amortised Cost:
Security deposit paid 254.63 262.30 254.63 262.30
Other advances 463.70 823.44 463.70 823.44
Total 718.33 1085.73 718.33 1085.73
Financial liabilities
L Amortised Cost:
Borrowings
Loans 38,036.17 33,888.49 38,036.17 33,888.49
Lease liabilities 5,241.94 5691.61 5,241.94 5691.61
Total 43,278.11 39,580.10 43,278.11 39,580.10

The management assessed that the fair values of short term financial assets and liabilities significantly
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. Accordingly,
management has not disclosed fair values for financial instruments such as trade receivables, trade payables,
cash and cash equivalents, other current assets, interest accrued on fixed deposits, other current liabilities etc.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be
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All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised with in the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

as a whole:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

A. Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2025:

Particulars Total Fair value measurement using
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable

active inputs inputs
markets
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Assets measured at FVTPL:

Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares - - - -

Assets measured at amortised cost for

which fair values are disclosed (refer note

ix):

Security deposit paid 254.63 - - 254.63

Other advances 463.70 - - 463.70

Liabilities measured at amortised cost for

which fair values are disclosed (refer note

ix):

Loans 38,036.17 - - 38,036.17

Lease liabilities 5,241.94 - - 5,241.94

During the year ended 31 March 2025, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value

measurements.

B. Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2024:

Particulars Total Fair value measurement using
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active inputs inputs
markets
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets measured at FVTPL:
Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares - - -
Assets measured at amortised cost for which
fair values are disclosed (refer note ix):
Security deposit paid 262.30 - - 262.30
Other advances 823.44 - - 823.44
Liabilities measured at amortised cost for
which fair values are disclosed (refer note ix):
Loans 33,888.4 - - 33,888.49
9
Lease liabilities 5691.61 - - pIHO1
O O

z)
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Lo

During the year ended 31 March 2024, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements.

(ix) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and assembling of automotive components such as
lock-set, mirrors and various sheet metal components including cabins for two wheelers, four wheelers and
off road vehicle industry. The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprises loans and borrowings,
trade and other payables and finance lease obligation. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
support the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include investments in equity,
employee advances, trade and other receivables, security deposits, cash and short-term deposits that derive
directly from its operations. The Company also enters into derivative transactions viz. CCIRS and Principal
Swaps.

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments
- Market risk (see (b));
- Credit risk (see (c)); and
- Liquidity risk (see (d)).

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and
the impact of hedge accounting in the financial statements.

a) Risk Management Framework
The Company’s activities make it susceptible to various risks. The company has taken adequate
measures to address such concerns by developing adequate systems and practices. The Company’s
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of markets and seeks to manage the
impact of these risks on the Company’s financial performance.

The Company’s senior management oversee the management of these risks and advises on financial risks
and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The board provides assurance
to the shareholders that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are
carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the
Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and company’s
activities. The company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their
roles and obligations.

The Company’s audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s
risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework
in relation to the risks faced by the company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by
internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk
and the impact of hedge accounting in the financial statements
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| Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management of risk
Credit Cash and cash equivalents, trade | Ageing Diversification of bank
Risk receivables, derivative financial analysis, deposits, credit limits and
instruments, financial assets Credit ratings letter of credit.
measured at amortised cost.
Liquidity Borrowings and liabilities Cash flow | Availability of borrowing
Risk forecasting, facilities.
Sensitivity
analysis

b) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises following types of risk: interest rate risk,
currency risk, price risk, and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans
and borrowings, investment, deposits, advances and derivative financial instruments.

¢) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with fixed interest rates.

Interest Rate sensitivity
A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have
increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that
all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Particulars Increase / dec.rease in basic Profit or loss Profit or loss (net of
points tax)

31 March 2025

Secured term loan from banks 100 22.18 16.60

Cash credit from bank 100 266.16 199.17

Other borrowings 100 92.02 68.86

Secured term loan from banks (100) (22.18) (16.60)

Cash credit from bank (100) (266.16) (199.17)

Other borrowings (100) (92.02) (68.86)

Particulars Increase / de?rease in basic Profit or loss Profit or loss (net of
points tax)

31 March 2024

Secured term loan from banks 100 34.65 25.93

Cash credit from bank 100 174.57 130.63

Other borrowings 100 129.67 97.03

Secured term loan from banks (100) (34.65) (25.93)

Cash credit from bank (100) (174.57) (130.63)

Other borrowings (100) (129.67) (97.03)
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Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign
exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is
denominated in a foreign currency) and borrowings in foreign currency (ECB borrowings).

Details of unhedged foreign currency exposures:

Import Trade Payables
Foreign Currency INR (Rs.)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
USD 0.46 1.58 39.51 131.61
EURO 66.98 64.78 6194.72 5826.81
Export Trade Receivable
Foreign Currency INR (Rs.)
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 | 31 March
2024
MXN 186.71 19.60 781.14 98.56
EUR 8.11 7.39 749.70 664.79
USD 9.08 13.36 775.61 1113.07
The following significant exchange rates were applied at the year-end:
Particulars Year-end rates
As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
INR/USD 85.4541 83.3363
INR/ EUR 92.4838 89.9503
INR/ MXN 4.1837 5.0276

Sensitivity Analysis

Any changes in the exchange rate of foreign currency against INR is not expected to have significant
impact on the Company's profit due to the short credit period. Accordingly, a 1%
appreciation/depreciation of the INR as indicated below, against the USD, EUR, MXN would have
increased/reduced profit by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based on the foreign currency
exchange rate variances that the Company considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis assumes that all other variable remains constant.
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Particulars | Change in Nature of | Year- Changes Net Effect | Effect on
currency Exposure | end in rates exposure on profit
rate rates USD profit after tax

before (INR)
tax
(INR)
Asat31 | INR/USD
March Increases by 85.4541 0.8545 0.46 (0.40) (0.30)
2025 1%
INR/USD
; . ; ; 0.
ll)s/jreases by Import 85.4541 (0.8545) 0.46 0.40 30
Asat31 | INR/USD gr:l‘j; S
March | Increases by | P® 83.3363 | 0.8334 1.58 (1.32) (0.98)
2024 1%
INR/USD
Decreases by 83.3363 (0.8334) 1.58 1.32 0.98
1 %

Particulars | Change in Nature of | Year- Changes Net Effect on | Effect on
currency Exposure | end in rates exposure profit profit
rate rates EURO before after tax

tax (INR) | (INR)
Asat31 | INR/EURO
March Increases by 66.98 (61.95) (46.36)
7 ;
2025 1% 92.4838 | 0.9248
INR/EURO
ll)f/creases by fiois 924838 | (0.9248) 66.98 61.95 46.36
o
Asat31 | INR/EURO gr:gfe S
March | Decreases by | P& 26,9503 Illo.8995 64.78 (58.27) (43.60)
2024 1% ) )
INR/EURO
Decreases by 89.9503 | (0.8995) 64.78 58.27 43.60
1%
Particula | Change in | Nature of Year- Change Net Effect on Effect on
s currency Exposure end s in exposur profit profit
rate rates rates e before tax after tax
MXN (INR) (INR)
As at31 | INR/MXN
March | Increases 7.81 5.85
4.1 .04 186.71
2025 by 1% 837 | 0.0418 86.7
INR/MXN
Decreases (7.81) (5.85)
4.1837 0.0418 186.71
by 1 % Export Trade ( )
Asat31 | INR/MXN | Receivables
March | Decreases 0.99 0.74
2024 by 1 % 5.0276 | 0.0503 19.60
INR/MXN
Decreases
by 1 % 5.0276 | (0.0503) 19.60
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Particulars | Change Nature of Year- Changes Net Effect Effect on
in Exposure end in rates exposure on profit
currency rates EUR profit after tax
rate before (INR)

tax
(INR)
As at31 | INR/EUR
March 0O 5.61
2025 Increases 92.4838 | 0.9248 8.11 7.50 )
by 1 %
INR/EUR
o (5.61)
Decreases 92.4838 | (0.9248) 8.11 (7.50)
by 1 % Export Trade
Asat31 | INR/EUR | Receivables
March O
2024 Decreases 89.9503 0.8995 7.39 6.65 4.97
by 1 %
INR/EUR
0
Decreases 89.9503 | (0.8995) 7.39 (6.65) (4.97)
by 1 %

Particulars | Change in Nature of | Year- Changes Net Effect on | Effect on
currency Exposure end in rates exposure profit profit
rate rates EUR before after tax

tax (INR) (INR)
As at31 | INR/USD
March Increases by 9.08 7.76 5.80
2025 1% 85.4541 | 0.8545
INR/USD
ll)f;:reases by Export 85.4541 | (0.8545) 9.08 (7.76) (5.80)
gent Bl INRIEED Rec;lol;jf(;f)les
March Decreases by 83.3363 0.8334 13.36 11.13 8.33
2024 1%
INR/USD
Decreases by 83.3363 | (0.8334) 13.36 (11.13) (8.33)
1%
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables), including foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments.

Trade receivables
Ind AS requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company assesses at
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receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit
losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to
the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition,

Before accepting any new customer, the Company assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits to customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed on periodic basis.
The Company performs credit assessment for customers on an annual basis and recognizes credit risk, on
the basis lifetime expected losses and where receivables are due for more than six months.

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the finance department in
accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only in schemes of alternate
investment fund/or other appropriate avenues including term and recurring deposits with approved
counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are
reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis. The limits are set to minimise the
concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make
payments.

The Company places its cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with banks with high investment
grade ratings, limits the amount of credit exposure with any one bank and conducts ongoing evaluation
of the credit worthiness of the banks with which it does business. Given the high credit ratings of these
banks, the Company does not expect these banks to fail in meeting their obligations.

d) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of
liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as
per requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and
by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank overdrafts, buyers credit and bank loans. The Company assessed the concentration of risk
with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has access to a sufficient
variety of sources of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing
lenders.
x) CIF Value of imports
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
- EUR USD EUR USD
Tools and Spares (STB) 1.58 - 2.72 -
Capex (STM) - - = 0.25
Capex (STB) 0.17 - - -
Raw Material (STM) 5.34 4.39 4.84 3.40
Stores & Spares (STM) - - - -
Tools and Spares (STM) 0.13 0.36 0.02 0.59
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(xi) Expenditure incurred in foreign currency

Period ended Period ended
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Particulars USD | RON | PLN EUR MXN USD | RON | PLN EUR MXN
Stores (STB) 2.58 - - - - 5.15 - - - -
Job Work (STB) 0.03 - - - - 0.00 - - - -
Rents (STB) - 0.11 - - = - 041 - - -
Bank Charges (STB) 000 | - |0.04 z z 0.01 | 003 | 0.00 s :
Raw Material (STM) = - - 6.08 - - - - 5.52 =
Packaging (STM) - - - - 28.16 - - - - 28.16
Consumables (STM) - - - 0.61 30.43 - - - 0.61 30.43
Maintenance & Spares (STM) - - - 0.71 27.45 - - - 0.71 27.45
Rent (STM) - - - - 2.94 - = - - 2.76
Job Work (STM) - - = 0.06 7.07 - - - - 10.89
Legal & Professional (STM) - - - 0.02 11.15 - - - 0.04 16.07
Salary, wages and bonus (STM) - - - - 340.07 - - - - 342.50
Social security expenses (STM) - - - - 69.13 - - - - 61.69
Staff welfare expenses (STM) - - - - 78.30 - - - - 77.23
Rates and taxes (STM) - - - - 9.40 - - - - 81.44
Miscellaneous expenses (STM) - - - 0.00 24.35 - - - - 24.52
Travelling and conveyance (STM) - - - - 6.23 - - - 0.00 5.79
Repairs and maintenance P&M (STM) - - - 0.23 97.00 - - - 0.03 78.10
:QS?}J:/;;S and maintenance Buildings - . ) . 7.90 ) ) _ ) 4.44
Repairs and maintenance Others (STM) - - - - 0.91 - - - - 1.09
Insurance (STM) - - - 0.48 0.30 - - - 0.48 -
Environmental expenses (STM) - - - - 6.88 - - - - 16.32
Freight and forwarding charges (STM) - - - - 19.05 - - - - 15.33
Power and fuel (STM) - - - - 193.23 - - - - 133.57
Vehicle hire charges (STM) - - - - 0.28 - - - - 1.90
bank charges (STM) - - - 0.01 1.09 - - = 0.01 1.16
CAPEX (STM) - - - - 92.97 - - - 3.00 49.48
Stores (STR) - - - 0.09 - 2 = £ 0.02 =
Job Work (STR) - - - 0.06 - - - - 0.06 -
bank charges (STR) - - - 0.01 - . » 2 0.05 <
Interest to banks (STR) - - - 3.88 - = 3 - 4.03 5
CAPEX (STR) - - - 312 - - = & 2.81 -
Interest to banks (STM) 2.58 - - - - - - - - -
(xii) Sales in foreign currency
. Year ended
Rarticulacs 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
USD EUR MXN USD | EUR | MXN

Sale of Tools (STB) 13.69 - 4433 | - -

Sale of Parts (STB) 7.82 - N, 12.32] - -

Sale of Parts (STR) - 38.24 - - 32.15| -

Sale of Scrap (STM) - - 10.53 - - |11.21

(xiii) Dividends

The Company has not declared/remitted any dividends during the period.
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(xiv) Gurantees given to third Parties

Nil

(xv) Previous year figures

Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year’s

classification.
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